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IDENTIFICATION 

Property Name (if any): Saint Luke’s Episcopal Church      

Address: 525 Park Avenue            

Date of Construction: c. 1901      City, County: Park City, Summit County, Utah  

Architect/Builder, if known: unknown     Tax Number: PC-72-X      

Current Owner: Episcopal Church  

Legal Description (include acreage): LOT 6 BLK 5 PARK CITY TOWNSITE ALSOTHE N'LY 5.5 FT OF LOT 5 BLK 5 

PARK CITY SURVEY BAL 0.05 ACRESE QC-660 461-184-A 668-396 

 

STATUS / USE 

Original Use: religious  Current Use: religious   

Property Type:   National Register of Historic Places:  Evaluation:   

 Building    Eligible      Landmark Site 

 Structure    Ineligible      Significant Site                 

  Site     Listed, Date:     Non Historic   

          11/20/1980 – Individually listed 

DOCUMENTATION 

Photographs:   Research Sources: 

 Tax Photos    Sanborn Maps  City/ County Histories  Newspapers  

 Prints:    tax Card   Personal Interviews   Other: 

 Historic    Census Records  Park City Museum       abstract of title 

                 USHS Preservation Files 
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DESCRIPTION 

Architectural Style: Carpenter Gothic style / church type          

No. Stories: 1     

Number of Associated Structures:   Accessory building(s). #   Structure(s). #  

Condition:   Good   Fair    Poor   Uninhabitable/Ruin 

Location:  Original location  Moved (Date: ,original location:  ) 

Materials: (Describe the visible materials)  

Exterior Walls: Drop siding      

Foundation: Stone      

Roof: Gable roof form sheathed in metal material         

Windows/Doors: Pointed (Gothic) arched double-hung sash type     

Additions:     Major   Minor   None 

Alterations:   Major   Minor   None      

Describe Additions/ Alterations (Dates):   

 

Essential Historic Form:  Retains       Does Not Retain 

 

NARRATIVE DESCRIPTION OF PROPERTY 

(Briefly describe the property and its setting. Include a verbal description of the location; a general description of 

the property including the overall shape, number of stories, architectural style, materials, shape of roof; identify and 

describe any associated structures; identify any known exterior additions and/or alterations.) 

 

St. Luke’s Episcopal Church was described in the 1980 National Register nomination form as follows: 

 

“St. Luke’s Episcopal Church was built in 1901 to replace the original Episcopal Church in Park City which was 

destroyed by fire in June, 1898. It is a small, one story, frame, rectangular chapel in a simplified Gothic style. The 

building rests on a coursed stone foundation. The roof is high-pitched and tin clad, with the gable end facing 

eastward to the street. Typical of many of the frame structures in Park City, the building is sided in painted 

horizontal shiplap. Cement stairs lead up from the street to a small porch in front of the vestibule, on the east side. 

 

The front façade of the nave is unornamented. Embellishments to the simple structure are found on the façade of 

the small vestibule. The entryway consists of a pair of eight-panel wooden doors with plain ceramic knobs. Directly 
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above the doors are two clear-paned pointed-arch windows, which provide a lancet effect in relation to the line of 

the doors. A pointed are within the gable encloses these two windows. Two stick work ornamental pointed arches 

are supported by console brackets on either side of the lintel. 

 

There are three pointed-arch windows on the North and South sides of the building. They are double-hung, wood 

sash, each containing two large clear panes and 21 stained cathedral glass edge pieces. Presently plastic sheeting 

covers these side windows and temporary metal grating protects them from snow.  

 

The west facade of the building holds one pointed arch window edged in Cathedral glass, behind the altar area. A 

small store room projects from the west side; there is physical evidence that this structure may have replaced a 

larger back room. 

 

The interior of the vestibule is lined in the original pine paneling. · Two stained wood doors open into the chapel 

itself. The interior of the church has been significantly altered. During renovation in May 1979, new structurally 

supporting cross beams were installed and the ceiling was dropped approximately two feet. The new ceiling covers 

the point at the top of the window behind the altar. When the original wallpaper was pulled off, it was found to be 

adhering to cloth, a common feature in Park City buildings of that period. The workmen stripped the walls down to 

the frame and siding, replacing the original walls with a plastic vapor barrier. This was covered with a skip-trowelled 

textured wallboard, which was used for the new ceiling as well. 

 

At the time of renovation, the building was settling around a large tree stump under the southwest corner of the 

building. The workmen leveled the floor, and it is now covered in thick wall-to-wall rust colored carpet.  

 

In 1964, the original coal stoves heating the building were replaced by space heaters. This inadequate and poorly 

wired system ·was replaced by a forced air system in the fall of 1979. The large aluminum ducts from this system 

run along the outside aisles, and a large heating grate is situated to the right of the altar cross. 

 

The original fixtures, wood moldings and altar area are intact. There are ten pews for the congregation, at angles in 

the chapel, with an additional pew on either side of the altar for the lay readers. The altar area is set off on a 

platform two steps above the main floor, and marked by a turned-wood altar rail open on the center aisle. The 

present altar is temporary; the original is in storage at the Episcopal retreat in Brighton, Utah. The brass altar cross, 

acquired in 1895, came from the original St. Luke's and was salvaged after the fire. 

 

Two handing light fixtures date to 1916, when they were donated by parishoners. Lighting is augmented by six new 

fluorescent lamps flush with the ceiling. 

 

To the right of the altar is a molded wood door leading into the small storage room, which contains the furnace, as 

well as functioning as a dressing room for the minister. 

 

No definite plans have been made for further renovation.” 

 

Since the writing of the 1980 nomination only minor changes have occurred. The tin roof mentioned in the 

description may have been replaced by a standing seam metal roof, but available images make it difficult to 
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confirm. A narrow walkway has been added to the south of the building and is covered with a steep shed roof. The 

overall form and materiality of the building remains intact and the building retains its historic value. 

 

 

SIGNIFICANCE 

Historic Era: 

 Settlement & Mining Boom Era (1868-1893) 

 Mature Mining Era (1894-1930) 

 Mining Decline & Emergence of Recreation Industry (1931-1962) 

 

Narrative Statement of Significance: 

(Briefly describe those characteristics by which this property may be considered historically significant.)  

The history of St. Luke’s Episcopal Church was given in the 1980 National Register nomination form as follows: 

 

“St. Luke's Episcopal Church rebuilt in the 1899-1900 period, is significant in several aspects. First, it is 

representative of Episcopal missionary activity in western mining towns. Second, it is significant to state history as 

a non-Mormon church in a non-Mormon Utah town. Finally, it is most significant to local history as one of the 

integrating and stabilizing institutions established during Park City's transition from a boom town into a permanent 

community the structure's exterior, a frame building in a simplified Gothic style, remains almost intact. St. Luke's 

Episcopal Church has survived in Park City through the continual efforts of its members, in spite of erratic support 

from its Diocese. Although the building itself has been blamed for the decline of the congregation, it now serves 

once again as a symbol of continuity and community in a modern-day boom town. 

 

The coming of the railroad and mineral discoveries in the mountains surrounding the Salt Lake Valley inspired a 

great influx of gentiles into Mormon Utah in the 1860s. Brigham Young banned mining activity for Mormons as 

interference with agricultural pursuits, discouraged mining of precious metals, and the boom towns springing up 

near the miners are predominantly gentile. 

 

Park City in its mine camp days of the 1870s was generally Catholic or Masonic. Episcopalian missionary interests 

turned to the mining towns during the 1880s. Services were held in Park City's schoolhouse whenever the itinerant 

Bishop Tuttle or one of his ministers came through town on their missionary circuit. A small but stable congregation 

emerged by the late 

1880s. Tuttle's successor, Bishop Abiel Leonard, recognized great missionary potential in Utah's mining 

communities and in September 1889 organized St. Luke's Mission in Park City. The local Missionary Committee 

consisted of H.C. Bates, J.W. Pearson, and S.L. Raddon. A men's benevolent association, the Brotherhood of St. 

Andrew, and a Ladies Guild engaged in social and humanitarian causes. Through dances, concerts, and other 

entertainments, the congregation raised most of the funds for a church building over the next year. The Episcopal 

District helped raise the balance to allow completion of the $3,000 church in March 1890. The building stood at 

310 Park Avenue. 
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During the next eight years the congregation grew rapidly and participated as an important factor in Park City 

social, cultural, and humanitarian activities. The Mission boasted a junior guild for young ladies and a surpliced 

boy’s choir by 1896. A rectory was built adjacent to the church during this period, to insure a resident minister of 

housing. The presence of a resident minister allowed regular services and encouraged further development of the 

lay organizations of St. Luke's.” 

 

The building is still owned by the Episcopal Church. 
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PHOTOS 

(Provide several clear historical and current photos of the property as well as locational maps indicating the 

location of the property in relation to streets or other widely recognized features.) 
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St. Luke’s Episcopal Church 

Park City, Summit County, Utah 

 

Photo: Rosemarie Haberle, March 1980 

Negative in possession of photographer 
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525 Park Avenue. Northeast oblique. November 2013. 

 

 
525 Park Avenue. East elevation. November 2013. 
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525 Park Avenue. Southeast oblique. November 2013. 
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MAPS 
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DOCUMENTS 
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